UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.
GENERAL

Economic and Social
Councill

E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 34
5 March 1997

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Fi fteenth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 34t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 21 Novenber 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai r man: M. ALSTON

|later: M. GRISSA

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

Third periodic report of Belarus (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Comn ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 96- 19297 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 34
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTIES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (agenda item 4) (continued)

Third periodic report of Belarus (continued) (E/ 1994/104/Add. 6
E/ C. 12/ 1995/ LQ 6/ Rev. 1; HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 70)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the del egation of Belarus took a
place at the Committee table.

2. The CHAI RPERSON noted with pleasure that the Republic of Bel arus was
represented by a high-level delegation led by the Deputy Mnister for Foreign
Affairs.

3. M . ANTANOVI CH (Bel arus), introducing the nenbers of his del egation
said that, as a future nenber of the Conmttee, the subm ssion of his
country's report would be a wel cone exercise for him

4, Stressing that, since its second periodic report (1991), Bel arus had
under gone soci al and econom ¢ upheaval s which were nore significant than at
any tinme since the beginning of the century and which were still far from

havi ng produced all their effects, he said that he would suppl enent the
i nformation contained in the report and in the witten replies transmtted to
the Conmittee (in English only).

5. A context of crisis was the background for the problens involved in the
i mpl enentati on of the Covenant and the neasures taken by the Governnment in the
past 11 months to deal with them Since the collapse of the Soviet Union and
the establishnment of the Republic of Belarus as a sovereign State, the country
had been going through a transition period characterized by an econom c,

soci al and cultural situation filled with contradictions, since it was heading
t owards denocracy and a nmarket economy, but it was still feeling the effects
of the preceding system It should, noreover, be borne in mnd that, in the
absence of civil and political rights as such, that system had guarant eed
everyone the right to social protection, work, education, an adequate standard
of living, physical and nental health and participation in cultural life.

Bel arus was thus not starting fromscratch, but, like all the other newy

i ndependent States of the former Soviet Union, it faced the problem of
protecting that achievenent and even strengthening it while bringing about a
basic reformof its structures during a period of crisis. The Republic of

Bel arus was one of the fragments of a country which had been very powerful and
whose heritage had been distributed very unequally. Its energy basis was
unbal anced, the volunme of its production had dropped by half in recent years,
inflation was rife, the budget deficit had deepened and consi derabl e amounts
had had to be spent to convert the mlitary industry and alleviate the effects
of the Chernobyl disaster. That explained why the social and economnic
situation had deteriorated despite efforts to maintain an acceptabl e standard
of living.



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 34
page 3

6. According to the UNDP Human Devel opnent Report, however, the case of
Bel arus was not hopel ess, since the devel opment index in 1994 had stood at
0.847, which was better than a negative index, and Belarus was in fortieth
pl ace, right after the European States.

7. In order to get out of the crisis, Belarus had adopted an econom c

ref orm programre designed to raise the population's standard of living to a

| evel conparable to that of the npbst advanced European States, which was,
according to European Conm ssion data, four times higher. 1t had adopted a
policy of social, econonmic and cultural integration within Europe which was
designed to enable it to enter the category of market econony countries while
preventing the gap between rich and poor from w dening. Sone indicators

al ready showed that production figures were no |onger dropping and that there
m ght even be a timd recovery of about 1 per cent.

8. The Governnent hoped that the econom c efforts being nmade woul d be
successful, but it refused to nmake the popul ation pay for them and that was
what explained its sl owness and careful ness, for exanple, with regard to
privatizations, which mght create unenploynment. That al so explained the fact
that it had nobilized resources to reduce the social inmpact of reforns and, in
Cct ober 1996, had adopted a progranme for the econom c and soci al devel opnent
of the country until the year 2000, which should slow the drop in output,
speed up privatizations, bring about |and ownership reform gradually
liberalize all fornms of economic activity, help create small and nedi um si zed
enterprises and establish a market econony infrastructure while |laying the
necessary | egal foundations for the protection of the rights and freedons of

citizens. It would, however, be illusory to believe that that woul d be easy.
The programe provided for health, training, cultural and enploynent neasures,
as well as neasures on behalf of young people. It should increase GDP by

105 per cent per year and real household income by 4 to 6 per cent per year
and reduce inflation by 2 to 4 per cent per year

9. In the spirit of article 2, paragraph 1, of the Covenant, the President
had adopted nore than 20 decrees in 1996 in order gradually to ensure the ful
exerci se of econom c, social and cultural rights. The decrees rel ated,

inter alia, to the inprovenent of housing conditions for young people, the

i ncrease in the anount of schol arships and the tinely paynment of wages,

pensi ons, schol arshi ps and benefits.

10. As far as the exercise of econonic, social and cultural rights was
concerned, the relationship between Bel arus and Russia could not be

over| ooked. The question of the integration of the two countries had been
conmmented on in the foreign press, which had even predicted that Bel arus woul d
| ose its sovereignty. That was absolutely not true. The two countries
econom c, social and cultural integration on the basis of the European
Comunity nodel, in which each State woul d keep its sovereignty and historica
features, would guarantee the citizens of both countries, anywhere in the

Uni on, absolute equality of rights as to social protection, enployment,

heal th, property ownership, housing, etc.

11. Referring to the referendumon the draft anendnent of the 1994
Constitution that was to be held on 24 Novenber, he said that the draft
anmendnent provided for nore extensive rights in a nunber of fields. For



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 34
page 4

exanple, the State woul d guarantee workers the right to take part in the
management of their enterprise (art. 13) and young people the right to
spiritual and noral devel opnent (art. 32); it would protect the right of every
citizen to an adequate standard of living, including sufficient food, a
dwel I i ng, clothing and constant inprovenents in the conditions required for
that purpose (art. 21); and it would guarantee access to health services

(art. 45). The draft reform was being hotly debated in parliament and had
given rise to street denonstrations, but it was to be hoped that it would be
adopted and that the crisis would be overcone.

12. The report of Belarus had just been published and would be distributed
shortly to all interested public bodies, main libraries and some national and
i nternational non-governmental organizations. The periodic report was being
publ i shed by the Governnent for the first tine.

13. He assured the Committee that the Governnment of Bel arus woul d spare no
effort in order better to fulfil its obligations under the Covenant.

List of issues: General information (paras. 1 to 5)

14. M. CEAUSU said that, in order to understand the situation created by

t he promul gation of a new Constitution in 1994 and the reason for the proposed
refornms, at |east one of the docunments transnmitted by Belarus (core document,
report, witten replies to the questions asked at the |ast session) should
have descri bed the structure and organi zation of institutions in Belarus. The
Conmittee should have an idea of how the |egislative, executive and judicia
branches were organi zed and of the relationship between them

15. In his statement, the Deputy Mnister for Foreign Affairs of Belarus had
referred to the decrees on human rights enacted by the President. He was
surprised that, in a country which was trying to establish the rule of |aw and
a bal anced political system preventing one group from underm ning the

princi ple of denocracy, i.e., the power of elected officials, the legislative
branch did not have jurisdiction with regard to |egislation. Belarus should
therefore provide explanations on points such as the organi zati on of the
judiciary and the powers of the Parlianent.

16. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO said that the oral and witten statenents did
not expl ain whet her econonic and political change had altered the distribution
of wealth and whether the gap between rich and poor had w dened or not.

17. M. TEXIER said that, although he too would |ike the questions raised by
M. Ceausu and Ms. Jinménez Butraguefio to be answered, he realized that

Bel arus was now going through a very difficult period. The nost inportant
thing for the Belarus Governnent was to be constantly concerned about the
consequences of the country's economic transition, particularly those of
privatization, since experience had shown that it usually led to the

i mpai rment of economic, social and cultural rights. It was essential for the
State to ensure respect for those rights at any cost and for the Governnent
and the delegation to deal with that aspect of the situation in their replies
to questions.



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 34
page 5

18. M. AHMED said that he wel coned the openness and courage the Bel arus
del egation had di splayed and particularly drew the Commttee's attention to
the fact that the witten replies were extrenely realistic.

19. M. THAPALIA said that he wi shed to know whether it was correct that
Presi dent Lukachenko had given the Mnistry of Education instructions to get
rid of “post-Soviet” school books, which had, in his opinion, treated Bel arus
like an entity that was too different from Russia. He would also |ike nore
det ai | ed denographi c, socio-economc¢ and cultural statistical information.

20. M. RATTRAY said that he would |ike to know whether the authorities of
Bel arus considered that, in the present transition period, they were in a
position satisfactorily to inplenent some provisions of the Covenant. Had
they adopted a programme of action that would be applicable for a specific
period of time and did they consider that sone of the rights provided for by
the Covenant were i medi ately applicable? It would also be interesting to
know whet her the Governnent of Belarus considered that the nove towards a

mar ket econony was irreversible and whether the |iberalization of the econony
was an end in itself or a way of inproving the quality of life of the citizens
of Belarus. According to the witten replies provided by the del egation

nmor eover, some of the rights provided for by the Covenant were not

i ncorporated into national |egislation. What nmeasures did the authorities of
Bel arus intend to take in that regard? He would also |like to understand why
citizens did not have an opportunity to apply to the Constitutional Court when
they considered that one of the rights recognized in the Covenant had been
violated. During the referendumthat was to be held shortly, would citizens
be asked whether the President should be authorized to determ ne to what
extent the rights recognized in the Covenant were applicable?

21. M. ALVAREZ VITA said that he wi shed to know whet her a referendum coul d
be organi zed on matters relating to economic, social and cultural rights and,
in particular, to prevent an enterprise frombeing privatized. That question
was particularly inportant because the powers of the Parliament appeared to be
especially limted in Bel arus.

22. M. CRISSA, noting that sone countries of the former Soviet Union were
now experiencing positive economc growth, said that it would be interesting
to know whet her the negative economic trend characteristic of Bel arus was
attributable to the fact that its econony was still very nuch |linked to the
Russi an econony. Had the Belarus authorities taken any measures to diversify
econonmic relations between the two countries and to reduce dependence on the
Russi an econony?

23. M . ADEKUOYE said that he would also Iike to know to what extent the
Bel arus authorities considered that they were capable of gradually ensuring
the full exercise of the rights recognized in the Covenant, account being
taken of the country's econom c prospects. He would also like to know the
position of the Government of Belarus on the draft optional protocol to the
Covenant now under consideration. It was known that Bel arus was nmaking
considerable efforts to realign its econony on that of Russia, where ngjor
deregul ation, privatization and restructuring nmeasures had been taken. \What
woul d happen if the pace of econonmic change in Belarus was not the sane as
that of the transition now taking place in Russia?




E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 34
page 6

24, M s. BONOAN- DANDAN requested the del egati on of Belarus to provide
detailed information on the situation of wonmen in its replies to the questions
asked by the nmenbers of the Conmittee.

25. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO asked what measures had been taken to give
effect in the legislation to the articles of the new Constitution

26. M. MARCHAN ROMERO said that he would like to have nore detailed

i nformati on on the main changes made in the new Constitution to reflect
political and social changes in Belarus. That Constitution had, noreover,
been adopted only in 1994, even though the country had becone i ndependent
in 1991. Had the 1977 Constitution continued to be in force during the
country's first three years of independence?

27. Ms. AHODI KPE said that she wi shed to know how Bel arus guar ant eed t hat
its legislation was in conformty with the principles of universal law. Could
those principles be directly invoked in the courts and were the courts
entirely free to hand down decisions in keeping with the | aw?

28. M. ANTANOVI CH (Bel arus) said that articles 6 and 7 of the Constitution
enbodi ed the principle of the separation and i ndependence of the |egislative,
executive and judicial branches and the principle of the non-applicability of
laws that were contrary to the Constitution. Belarus was the only former

Sovi et Union country where the powers of the Supreme Council took precedence
over those of the President of the Republic. Following a referendum the
Presi dent was therefore considering the possibility of introducing various
reforns, including the replacenent of the Suprene Council, some of whose
menbers hel d high-ranking posts in large enterprises, by a bicanera
parliamentary systemin which deputies would devote thensel ves exclusively to
their adm nistrative work.

29. The 1994 Constitution had strengthened the protection of economc
social and cultural rights. However, the legislation still had a nunber of
gaps that would have to be filled and a constitutional amendrment was
necessary. Many |aws had not yet been adopted to create the necessary
conditions for econom c and social devel opment, and decrees were enacted by
the President. The deterioration of the economc situation made it difficult
to inplenment rights provided for in the Covenant, which was binding only in
the Constitutional Court, but could be invoked in the other courts.

30. As part of the former Soviet Union, Belarus had had sone econonic
success. |Its standard of living had been 30 per cent higher than in the other
countries of the fornmer Soviet Union, including the Baltic countries. That
had been because of the excellent training received by workers. It should be
stressed that agricultural output continued to be adequate. He was convinced
that the country would see slight economic gromh within five years, but it
woul d probably be the middle of the twenty-first century before the situation
became normal. By way of conparison, he recalled that M. Kohl, the
Chancel | or of the Federal Republic of Germany, had recently stated that it
woul d take about 15 years to bring the former GDR up to the | evel of the

West Cerman Lander. Thanks to the efforts it had nade, however, Bel arus had
practically stopped asking for assistance fromthe | M- and other institutions.



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 34

page 7
31. Growth in neighbouring countries was, of course, stronger, but the
President was no fool and he knew the consequences of intense grow h,
i ncluding an increase in unenploynment. In Belarus, unenploynent was only

5 per cent, but partial unenploynent affected 20 per cent of the active
popul ation, with the result that the standard of living had decli ned.

32. Corruption was an enornous problem Organized crime existed, especially
drug trafficking, even though it was not as w despread as in other forner

Sovi et Union countries. The gap between persons who had got rich through
specul ation and the rest of the popul ati on was enornous. The average wage was
1.4 mllion Belarus roubles, or about US$ 70. The incone of 60 per cent of

t he popul ation was even less than that. 1In his view, it was because the

Presi dent had fought organized crinme and refused to allow Belarus to becone a
transit area for stolen goods from Russia being taken to the rest of Europe
that the country's growth was |ess than that of sonme nei ghbouring countries.
Those countries had paid the price and a majority of their econom c systemns
depended on Mbscow gangs.

33. At present, Belarus was giving priority to econom c and social relations
with Russia, which was well on its way to denocratization, because it was now
easier to cooperate with Russia and the other CI'S countries than with the rest
of Europe. The aimwas to open up CIS nmarkets to high-tech conmpani es which
had been established to supply consuner goods to the Soviet Union. Only if
cooperation with Russia did not work out would Belarus turn towards the

Eur opean mar ket .

34. Privatizati on was proceeding at a cautious pace. Only 9 per cent of
public enterprises had been privatized, nostly in the services and trading
sector. No large industrial enterprise had been privatized because of the

| ack of valid buyers or investors. It was often difficult to privatize. For
exanple, a United States buyer had proposed nodernizing an enterprise which
had manuf actured 500,000 tractors per year, provided that only 5,6 000 of the
100, 000 workers in the enterprise were kept on. Carrying out that kind of
privatization at the national |evel would nean putting over 500,000 persons
out of work. The result would be civil war, if not the death of the Republic
of Bel arus.

35. It should al so be enphasized that the popul ati on had got used to
obsol ete worki ng nmethods and that absenteei smduring the Soviet period had
been very high. In nost cases, the popul ati on expected everything fromthe
State. It saw only the consunmer society part of Western Europe and did not
know that it was also a society with very high output. It was difficult to
create small and nedium sized enterprises in Belarus because the popul ation
showed no initiative. Adversity neverthel ess made people mature.

36. The situation of wonmen was a matter of concern because women were the
first to feel the effects of the economic crisis. In a way, they were the
victinms of socialist-style |egislation which provided, for exanple, for
maternity |l eave for up to three years. It was understandable that private
enterprises should be reluctant to hire wonen.

37. M. Gissa took the Chair.




E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 34
page 8

38. M. CEAUSU said that he wi shed to know whet her the provisions of the
Covenant were directly applicable by the courts. The witten replies also
stated that judges gave preference to internal law Did that nmean that it
t ook precedence over the Covenant?

39. M. ANTANOVI CH (Bel arus) said that, in his opinion, there was nothing in
the Bel arus | egal systemto prevent the provisions of the Covenant from being
fully inmplemented. His delegation would answer that question in detail the
foll owi ng day.

I ssues relating to the general provisions of the Covenant (arts. 1 to 5)

40. The CHAI RPERSON, referring to the inplenentation of articles 1, 2 and 3
of the Covenant, said that he would Iike to know whether there were any

di spl aced persons in the country and, if so, what measures had been taken to
i nprove their situation.

41. M. ANTANOVI CH (Bel arus) said that, unlike sone eastern European
countries, Belarus had not experienced any | arge-scal e popul ati on novenents.
On i ndependence day itself, Belarus citizenship had been granted to al
persons residing in the national territory. Cohabitation by the 100 or so
nationalities that nade up the country did not give rise to any problens,
since the nenbers of those mnorities were scattered throughout the territory
and, unlike the Tatars in Crinmea, for exanple, did not have any particul ar
territorial clains.

42. As a result of its geographical |ocation, Belarus was a stopping-off
pl ace for the many Asians, including Indians and Paki stanis, who wanted to
em grate to western Europe. In order to solve that problem it had taken part

in the preparations for the Conference on Mgration, which was to be held
shortly under the auspices of the International Organization for Mgration

| ssues relating to specific rights

| npl enentation of article 6

43. M. CEAUSU said that he would |like to know why the necessary di smantling
of the harnful econom c systeminherited from Comuni smwas so slow and why
Bel arus was taking so long to inplement its privatization programme. It would
al so be interesting to know how nany bankruptcies there had been and what
status workers had with regard to enpl oynent.

44, M. TEXIER, referring to paragraph 8 of the report, which stated that
the nunber of unenpl oyed workers for every 10 job vacancies had risen from 13
in December 1992 to 53 in Decenber 1993, said that he w shed to know what
measures had been taken to deal with that alarmng trend. What was meant by
“conceal ed unenpl oynent”, since the official unenploynment rate had been only
1.4 per cent in |ate 19937

45. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO sai d that she would |like to know whet her many
smal | and nedi um si zed enterpri ses had been created.

46. M. ANTANOVI CH (Bel arus) said that only 9 per cent of public enterprises
had been privatized and that the suspension of the privatization progranme was
only tenporary. It was very difficult to know the exact nunber of
bankrupt ci es because nany small and nedi um si zed enterprises went bankrupt



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 34
page 9

even before they had been registered. Mreover, the registration procedure
for new enterprises had not yet been definitely decided on

47. “Conceal ed unenpl oynent” neant “underenploynent”. 1In nearly all |arge
enterprises, workers worked only two or three days a week. That situation
woul d go on as long as the economic crisis had not been overconme. In

addition, many mcro-enterprises officially enployed workers, but could not
afford to pay their wages

48. Col | ective bargai ning agreenents were concluded by enpl oyers, trade
uni ons and workers thensel ves and related to such issues as working conditions
and wages.

49. Ms. BONOAN- DANDAN requested information on the enploynent of persons
who did not have the sane opportunities for access to the | abour market

(di sabl ed persons, young people, etc.), on why nore women than nen were
unenpl oyed and on unenpl oynent benefits and conditions to be met for
entitlenent to them

50. M. ANTANOVI CH (Bel arus) said that those questions were answered in
detail on pages 8 to 10, 15 to 18 and 41 and 42 of the witten replies of
Bel ar us.

51. M. ADEKUOYE said that he would li ke to know what neasures had been
taken to conbat wonen's unenpl oynment.

52. M . ANTANOVI CH (Bel arus) said that the Governnment organized training and
recycling courses for wonen and encouraged enterprises to make nore flexible
wor ki ng arrangenents nore w dely avail able, especially part-tinme work. The
Parliament was at present considering a bill on that question which provided,
in particular, for social neasures on behalf of wonen with children.

| npl enentation of article 7

53. M. CEAUSU said that he had been struck by a part of the witten replies
whi ch stated that the mni num wage covered only about 11 per cent of the

m ni mum consuner expenditure of a four-person household. He would like to
have sone explanations in that regard.

54. M. TEXIER, referring to paragraph 13 of the report, which stated that
the nonetary inconme of the popul ation had increased by a factor of 13.3 tines
in 1993, whereas retail prices had risen by 16.8 tinmes in the same period,
said that it would be hel pful to know what neasures had been taken to conbat
t he erosion of purchasing power

55. He al so wished to know what neasures had been taken to renew machinery
and equi pment in enterprises, which were described as obsol ete and therefore
caused many accidents in the workplace (para. 21 of the report). He would
also like sonme informati on on the power of the State conm ssion for the
assessnment of working conditions to prevent work accidents (para. 20).

The neeting rose at 6 p.m




